TITLE: Public Announcement: A-76 Study for Program Support Services

The government intends to award a service provider contract or letter of obligation to assist the Department of Labor with LBU6: Program Support Services (PSS) in the performance of program management, clerical, and administrative Officer Functions for the Employment and Training Administration (ETA), Employment Standards Administration (ESA), Mine Safety and Healthy Administration (MSHA), and Women's Bureau (WB).

You are invited to submit a proposal/bid in accordance with the requirements of the following Solicitation: [X] Request for Proposal, [ ] Invitation for Bid. Proposals/Bids must be received by the Government no later than the local time on the Due Date stated in the table below. Potential offerors/bidders are asked to complete and submit a proposal/bid intent form

See Section L (Section C if SF 1449 is used) for proposal/bid instructions

ALL AMENDMENTS TO THIS SOLICITATION WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE THROUGH THE GOVERNMENT HOMEPAGE AT http://www.doleta.gov/sga/rfp.cfm

IT IS THE OFFEROR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO CHECK THIS SITE PERIODICALLY FOR OFFICIAL UPDATES/AMENDMENTS TO THE SOLICITATION.

	,
Solicitation Number:	DOL061RP20093
Issue Date:	10-20-2006
Due Date:	02-06-2007
Time:	2:00 p.m.
Program Office:	1630
Contracting Officer:	Keith A. Bond
Contact Point:	Chari A. Magruder
Phone:	202-693-3313
Fax:	202-639-3846
E-Mail:	magruder.chari@dol.gov
Set Aside:	100% Small Business Set-Aside

#### PERTINENT TECHNICAL SECTIONS OF SOLICITATION

Offerors are encouraged to carefully read the entire Solicitation by scrolling downward. The Solicitation includes all pertinent technical sections imbedded in the document as well as the terms, conditions and instructions required for submitting a proposal. For your convenience, the pertinent technical sections of the Solicitation have also been linked directly below (in WordProcessing and Adobe PDF format):

Section B - Supplies or Services and Price/Cost
Section C - Performance Work Statement
Section F - Deliveries or Performance
Section L - Instructions, Conditions, and Notices
Section M - Evaluation Criteria

SOLICITATION, OFFER AND AWARD				1. THIS CONTRACT IS A RATED ORDER UNDER DPAS (15 CFR 700)			DER	RATING N/A		I/A	PAGE	OF	PAGES 298			
2. CON	TRACT N	UMBER		3. SOLICITATIO	N NUMBER	4	1. T <u>YPE</u>	OF SOLIC	CITATION		5. DATE IS	SSUED	6. REQ	6. REQUISITION/PURCHASE NUMBER		NUMBER
				DOL061RP	D20093			SEALED I	BID (IFB)							
				DODOUTKI			х	NEGOTIA	TED (RFF	P)	10/20	/2006				
7. ISSU	ED BY				CODE ETA			8. ADDRE	SS OFFE	R TO (If other	than Item 7	7)				
		Department of Laion of Contract							_	artment of			GCM			
		onstitution Ave					Division of Contract Services 200 Constitution Avenue, NW									
		N-4655 ngton DC 20210							m N-46	555 on DC 2021	1.0					
								Wasi	iiiigcc	DII DC 202.	10					
NOTE:	In sealed	bid solicitations "offer" and "	offeror" me	an "bid" and "bidde	er".	601	1017	FATIO	NI .							
			ection	т 7 .				<u> </u>			.,,	1: 1: 0 :				
9. Seale		original and <u>See Se</u> 7, above	CCIOII	copies	for furnishing the supplies	or servic	es in th	e Schedule	e will be re	-	ace specifie 0 p.m.		r nandcarried, I time <u>09-08</u>		ory located	in
CALITIC					and Description No. 50 04	17 50 (	245.4	All 0#		-	(Hour)			(Date)		
		Submissions, Modifications	A. NAM		on L, Provision No. 52.214	1-7 or 52.2				LLECT CALLS)		C. E-MAIL A				
10.101	t ii di Oitiii	ATION GALL.	A. IVAIVI	-		A	REA CO		JMBER	EX		O. E-WAIE A	DDICEOU			
			Chari	A. Magrud	er			93-331			<b></b>	magruder	.chari@d	dol.gov		
						11. TAI	BLE OF	CONTEN	TS	Se	ee Atta	ached Tak	ole of Co	ontents		
(X)	SEC.		DES	SCRIPTION		PAGI	E(S)	(X)	SEC.			DESCRI	PTION			PAGE(S)
		P	ART I - THE	E SCHEDULE		-					PART	II - CONTRAC	T CLAUSES			
	А	SOLICITATION/CONTRA	CT FORM						1	CONTRACT CL	AUSES					
	В	SUPPLIES OR SERVICES	S AND PRIC	CES/COSTS						PART III - LIST	F OF DOCU	MENTS, EXHI	BITS AND OTI	HER ATTACH		
	С	DESCRIPTION/SPECS./V	VORK STA	TEMENT					J	LIST OF ATTAC	CHMENTS					
	D	PACKAGING AND MARK	ING							PART	IV - REPRE	SENTATIONS	AND INSTRU	ICTIONS		_
	E	INSPECTION AND ACCE	PTANCE							REPRESENTAT			AND OTHER			
	F	DELIVERIES OR PERFO	RMANCE			<u> </u>			Λ .	STATEMENTS (	OF OFFER	ORS				
	G	CONTRACT ADMINISTRA	ATION DA	ГА		ļ			L	INSTR., CONDS., AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS			ļ			
	Н	SPECIAL CONTRACT RE	QUIREME	NTS						EVALUATION F		OR AWARD				
					OFFER (Mus	t be f	ully	comp	leted	by offero	or)					
		oes not apply if the solicitation		•												
for		with the above, the undersigned above, to full								s a different peri ered at the design						
		OR PROMPT PAYMENT I, Clause No. 52-232-8)			10 CALENDAR DAYS	(%)	:	20 CALENDAR DAYS (%) 30 CALENDAR DAYS (%) CAL		CALENDAR	DAYS (%)					
		OGEMENT OF AMENDMEN			AMEND	MENT NO	Э.	DATE AMENDMENT NO.			I	DATE				
		acknowledges receipt of ame ON for offerors and related d		the												
nur	nbered an	d dated:			L		_			1						
	AME AND	c	ODE L			ACILITY		16. NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO SIGN OFFER (Type or print)			₹					
	F OFFER	OR									,					
	15B	. TELEPHONE NUMBER								17. SIGNATU	IRE				18. OFF	ER DATE
AREA C	ODE	NUMBER EX	KT.		HECK IF REMITTANCE A E - ENTER SUCH ADDRE				-ROM							
					414/4.00	<del>/</del>				<u> </u>						
					AWARD	(10 b	e co									
19. ACC	EPTED A	AS TO ITEMS NUMBERED			20. AMOUNT			21. ACCC	OUNTING	AND APPROPR	IATION					
22. AUTHORITY FOR USING OTHER THAN FULL AND OPEN COMPETITION:				23. SUBMIT INVOICES TO ADDRESS SHOWN IN (4 copies unless otherwise specified)												
10 U.S.C. 2304(a) ( ) 41 U.S.C. 253(c) ( 24. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than Item 7) CODE			( )		25 PAYM	IENT W/II I	L BE MADE BY				CODE	ETA				
					U.S Div 200 Roc	Deprision Cons	artment o of Accou titution	inting Avenue			OODE					
26. NAM	ME OF CC	NTRACTING OFFICER (Ty	pe or print)					27. UNITE	ED STATE	S OF AMERICA					28. AWA	ARD DATE
		1.901								(Signature o	f Contractin	g Officer)				
IMPOR'	ı ANT - Av	vard will be made on this Fo	rm, or on St	andard Form 26, o	or by other authorized office	cial writter	n notice									

# **Table of Contents**

PART I - THE SCHEDULE	B-1
SECTION B - SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS	B-1
B.1 SERVICES ORDERED	B-1
B.2 AWARD	B-2
B.3 SCHEDULE OF PRICES	B-2
SECTION C – PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT	C-5
SECTION D - PACKAGING AND MARKING	D-1
[For this Solicitation, there are NO clauses in this Section]	D-1
SECTION E - INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	E-1
E.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	E-1
SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE	F-1
F.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	
F.2 PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	
F.3 LEVEL OF EFFORT	
F.4 REPORTS/DELIVERABLES	
SECTION G - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA	G-1
G.1 INVOICE REQUIREMENTS	
G.2 METHOD OF PAYMENT	
G.3 PAYMENT FOR SUB-LINE ITEMS NOT SEPARATELY PRICED	
G.4 DOLAR 2952.201-70 CONTRACTING OFFICER'S TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE	
(COTR) (MAY 2004)	G-3
SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS	H-1
H.1 CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE SUITABILITY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	
H.2 POST AWARD CONFERENCE	П-1 Н_3
H.3 FRINGE BENEFITS	
H.4 VACATIONS, SICK-LEAVE HOLIDAYS	
H.5 TRAVEL AND PER DIEM	
H.6 USE OF AND PAYMENT TO CONSULTANTS	
H.7 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE COST	
H.8 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING SERVICES	
H.9 PRINTING	
H.10 KEY PERSONNEL	
H.11 CONTRACT NUMBER IDENTIFICATION	
H.12 SUBMISSION OF CORRESPONDENCE	
H.13 OTHER CONTRACTORS	H-6
H.14 LAWS APPLICABLE	H-6
H.15 DISPOSITION OF MATERIAL	
H.16 NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES	H-7
H.17 FEDERAL REPORTS	
H.18 DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	
H.19 ELIMINATION OF SEXIST LANGUAGE AND ART WORK	
H.20 HAZARDOUS OCCUPATION ORDERS	
H.21 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (FAR-Subpart 28.3)	H-9

H.22 DATA COLLECTION FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR	
H.23 RESTRICTION ON USE OF DOL FUNDS FOR LOBBYING	H-10
H.24 PUBLICATION OF MATERIALS	H-10
H.25 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT - SERVICE (FAR 17.208(g))	H-10
H.26 INDIRECT COSTS	H-11
H.27 TRANSITION PHASE	H-12
PART II - CONTRACT CLAUSES	I-1
SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSES	I-1
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	I-1
I.2 52.207-3 RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL OF EMPLOYMENT (MAY 2006)	I-2
I.3 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000)	I-2
I.4 52.219-14 LIMITATIONS ON SUBCONTRACTING (DEC 1996)	I-2
I.5 52.222-43 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT AND SERVICE CONTRACT ACT - PRICE	
ADJUSTMENT (MULTIPLE YEAR AND OPTION CONTRACTS) (MAY 1989)	I-3
I.6 52.222-44 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT AND SERVICE CONTRACT ACT - PRICE	2
ADJUSTMENT (MULTIPLE YEAR AND OPTION CONTRACTS) (FEB 2002)	I-3
I.7 52.232-25 PROMPT PAYMENT (FEB 2002) Alternate I (FEB 2002)	
I.8 52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998)	
PART III - LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS	J-1
SECTION J - LIST OF ATTACHMENTS	Т 1
J.1 CONTRACT PRICING PROPOSAL COVER SHEET, SF 1411	
J.2 COST AND PRICE ANALYSIS, ETA 8555	J-1
J.3 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CAPABILITY, ETA 8554	J-1
J.4 COST CONTRACTOR'S INVOICE, ETA 3100-1	J-1
J.5 COST CONTRACTOR'S DETAILED STATEMENT OF COST, ETA 3-2	
J.6 VETS-100 - FEDERAL CONTRACTOR VETERANS EMPLOYMENT REPORT, OMB 1293-0005	<b>I</b> _1
J.7 PAST PERFORMANCE REFERENCE INFORMATION	
J.8 PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION QUESTIONNAIRE	
J.9 TECHNICAL EXHIBITS 1-7	, J−1 T_1
J.10 MODIFIED RESUME	
J.11 PWS, TECHNICAL EXHIBIT, AND SOLICITATION QUESTION &	J-1
EVALUATION TEMPLATE	T 1
J.12 PROFESSIONAL PERSONNEL TECHNICAL SKILLS SET	
J.12 I ROLESSIONAL LERSONNEL LECTINICAL SKILLS SET	J-1
PART IV - REPRESENTATIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS	<b>K</b> _1
IIII II III IIII III III IIII IIII IIII IIII	,,,,,1X-T
SECTION K $$ - REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF O	
	K-1
K.1 52.203-2 CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PRICE DETERMINATION (APR 1985)	K-1
K.2 52.204-8 ANNUAL REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS (JAN 2006)	K-2
K.3 52.222-22 PREVIOUS CONTRACTS AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS (FEB 1999)	
K.4 52.222-25 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMPLIANCE (APR 1984)	
K.5 SIGNATURE BLOCK	
SECTION L - INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS, AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS	
L.1 NOTICE LISTING SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	
L.2 52.207-1 NOTICE OF STANDARD COMPETITION (MAY 2006)	L-1

L.3	52.216-1 TYPE OF CONTRACT (APR 1984)	<mark>L</mark> .1
L.4	52.237-1 SITE VISIT (APR 1984)	L-2
L.5	PAST PERFORMANCE	L-2
L.6	SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL	L-3
L.7	SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS	L-6
L.8	52.252-1 SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FI	EB 1998) L-6
SECTION	N M - EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD	M-1
M.1	NOTICE LISTING SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFER	ENCE M-1
M.2	BASIS FOR AWARD (LOWEST PRICE, TECHNICALLY ACCEPTABLE)	M-1
M.3	EVALUATION CRITERIA	M-2
M.4	DETERMINING AWARD	M-4

#### PART I - THE SCHEDULE

#### SECTION B - SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS

#### **B.1 SERVICES ORDERED**

Title: "Public Announcement of A-76 Study for Program Support Services (PSS)"

The Government intends to award a service provider contract or letter of obligation to assist the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) with Program Support Services (PSS) in the performance of program management, clerical, and administrative officer functions for the Employment and Training Administration (ETA), Employment Standards Administration (ESA), Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA), and Women's Bureau (WB).

Solicitation No.: DOL061RP20093

Period of Performance shall be 515 calendar days inclusive of the 150 calendar day Phase-In Period and the twelve (12) month base period for performance, plus four 1-year options to extend at the discretion of the Government. The Phase-In Plan is anticipated to begin on or about May 4, 2007 with full contract performance to be approximately October 1, 2007, through September 30, 2008.

This solicitation is a 100% Small Business Set-Aside.

The North American Industry Classification System Code is 561990, with a \$6.5 million size standard.

A firm-fixed-price type contract is contemplated for this requirement.

Pursuant to Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-76 (revised May 29, 2003), Attachment B, this will be a standard competition (not to exceed 12 months from public announcement to performance date).

The closing date and time for delivery of offers and tenders is February 6, 2007, at 2:00 p.m., local time.

# REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION (RFC) MUST BE RECEIVED NO LATER THAN 12:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME, FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2006.

Only electronic submission of requests will be accepted. They shall be submitted to Ms. Chari A. Magruder at magruder.chari@dol.gov. Should any RFC be received after the date stated above, the Government reserves the right not to provide an answer. If, however, the Government determines that the RFC raises an issue of significant importance, the government will respond electronically. The Government will not provide any information concerning requests for clarification in response to telephone calls from offerors. All requests will be answered electronically and will be available to all offerors at the DOLETA Internet site (http://www.doleta.gov/sga/rfp.cfm). Please be advised that it is the sole responsibility of the offeror to continually view the DOLETA website for any amendments to this solicitation.

# **B.2 AWARD**

One award for the aggregate of all items will be made under this solicitation.

PLEASE NOTE: NO GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL INVOLVED IN THE PREPERATION OF THE AGENCY TENDER PRODUCTS WILL BE INVOLVED IN THE SOURCE SELECTION PROCESS, INCLUDING THE COST ESTIMATE PROCESS.

# **B.3. SCHEDULE OF PRICES**

ITEM NO.	DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES/SERVICES	QTY	UNIT	UNIT PRICE
0000	Phase-In Period	150	Days	
0001	Firm Fixed Price Services – Base Year (Year 1)	12	months	
AA	Administrative and Customer Support			
ВВ	Logistics Support			
CC	Program Support			
DD	Information Technology and Management Support			
EE	Policy and Planning Support			
FF	Program Management and Outreach Support			
GG	Procurement and Accounting Support			
		Total F	Price for Base Year:	\$
0002	Firm Fixed Price Services – Option Year 1 (Year 2)	12	months	
AA	Administrative and Customer Support			
ВВ	Logistics Support			
CC	Program Support			

DD	Information Technology and Management Support			
ГГ	Policy and Planning Support			
EE	3 3 11			
FF	Program Management and Outreach Support			
GG	Procurement and Accounting Support			
	Total	Price for	Option Year 1:	\$
0003	Firm Fixed Price Services – Option Year 2 (Year 3)	12	months	
AA	Administrative and Customer Support			
BB	Logistics Support			
CC	Program Support			
DD	Information Technology and Management Support			
EE	Policy and Planning Support			
FF	Program Management and Outreach Support			
GG	Procurement and Accounting Support			
	Total Price fo	or Option	Year 2: \$ _	
0004	Firm Fixed Price Services – Option Year 3 (Year 4)	12	months	
AA	Administrative and Customer Support			
ВВ	Logistics Support			
CC	Program Support			
DD	Information Technology and Management Support			
EE	Policy and Planning Support			
FF	Program Management and Outreach Support			
GG	Procurement and Accounting Support			

	Total Price fo	or Option	Year 3: \$	
0005	Firm Fixed Price Services – Option Year 4 (Year 5)	12	months	
AA	Administrative and Customer Support			
BB	Logistics Support			
CC	Program Support			
DD	Information Technology and Management Support			
EE	Policy and Planning Support			
FF	Program Management and Outreach Support			
GG	Procurement and Accounting Support			
Total Price for Option Year 4: \$  GRAND TOTAL				

# DOL06RP20093 Section C

# SECTION C - DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK

SEE ATTACHMENT C.1 PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS)

SEE ATTACHMENT C.2 APPLICABLE LAWS & REGULATIONS (PWS Attachment 1a)

SEE ATTACHMENT C.3 APPLICABLE PUBLICATIONS & FORMS (PWS Attachment 1b)

# **SECTION D - PACKAGING AND MARKING**

[For this Solicitation, there are NO clauses in this Section]

**D-1** 

# **SECTION E - INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE**

# **E.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE**

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE	DATE
52.246-1	CONTRACTOR INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS	APR 1984

E-1

#### **SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE**

#### F.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE	DATE
52.242-15	STOP-WORK ORDER	AUG 1989
52.242-17	GOVERNMENT DELAY OF WORK	APR 1984
52.247-34	F.O.B. DESTINATION	NOV 1991
52.247-48	F.O.B. DESTINATIONEVIDENCE OF SHIPMENT	FEB 1999

# **F.2 PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE**

Period of Performance shall be 515 calendar days inclusive of the 150 calendar day Phase-In Period and the twelve (12) month base period for performance, plus four 1-year options to extend at the discretion of the Government.

# **F.3 LEVEL OF EFFORT**

Please see Section B.3 - Schedule of Prices.

#### F.4 REPORTS/DELIVERABLES

The contractor shall be responsible for submission of reports and deliverables as described in the PWS.

F-1

#### SECTION G - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA

#### **G.1 INVOICE REQUIREMENTS**

Contractor will prepare and submit proper invoices (as defined in C below) in accordance with the criteria outlined below. (Also, see Clause 52.232-8 "Discount for Prompt Payment", contained in Section I of the contract.):

- A. (1) If the contract is a cost-reimbursement type contract, the contractor will submit three (3) ink- signed copies of the invoice, Cost Contractor's Invoice, (ETA 3100-1), together with a detailed report of expenditures, Cost Contractor's Detailed Statement of Costs (ETA 3-2), to the Contracting Officer's Technical Representative (COTR), U.S. Department of Labor, not more frequently than monthly, unless otherwise so authorized in the contract.
- (2) If the contract is a fixed-price type contract, the contractor may submit SF-1034, Public Voucher, or the equivalent thereto; i.e., contractor's own invoice, in lieu of the forms described in A(I) above.
  - (3) Invoices should be submitted to the individual listed below:

To Be Determined U.S. Department of Labor, ETA 200 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room (TBD) Washington, D.C. 20210

- B. The Detailed Report of Expenditures (ETA 3-2) submitted with the Invoice (ETA 3100-1) must include the same budget line items or cost categories as appears in the contract, including any modifications thereto.
- C. To constitute a proper invoice, the invoice, must include the following information and/or attached documentation:
  - (1) Name and address of the Contractor;
  - (2) Invoice date;
- (3) Contract number or other authorization for supplies delivered or services performed (including order number and contract line item number).
- (4) Description, quantity, unit of measure, unit price, and extended price of supplies delivered or services performed.
- (5) Shipping and payment terms (e.g., shipment number and date of shipment, prompt payment discount terms. Bill of lading number and weight of shipment will be shown for shipments on Government bills of lading.
- (6) Name and address of Contractor official to whom payment is to be sent (must be the same as that in the contract or in a proper notice of assignment).

- (7) Name (where practicable), title, telephone number and mailing address of person to be notified in event of a defective invoice.
  - (8) Any other information or documentation required by other requirements of the contract.

In addition to the above, invoices should be numbered consecutively. All final invoices shall be clearly marked Final Invoice.

# **G.2 METHOD OF PAYMENT**

- A. Payments under this contract will be made either by check or electronic funds transfer (through the Treasury Fedline Communications System (FEDLINE) or the Automated Clearing House (ACH)), at the option of the Government. After award, but no later than 14 days before an invoice or contract financing request is submitted, the Contractor shall designate a financial institution for receipt of electronic funds transfer payments. The contractor shall submit this designation to the Contracting Officer or other Government official as directed.
  - B. For payments through FEDLINE, the Contractor shall provide the following information:
    - (1) Name, address, and telegraphic abbreviation of the financial institution receiving payment.
- (2) The American Bankers Association 9-digit identifying number of the financing institution receiving payment if the institution has access to the Federal Reserve Communications System.
  - (3) Payee's account number at the financial institution where funds are to be transferred.
- (4) If the financial institution does not have access to the Federal Reserve Communications System, provide the name, address, and telegraphic abbreviation of the correspondent financial institution through which the financial institution receiving payment obtains electronic funds transfer messages. Provide the telegraphic abbreviation and American Bankers Association identifying number for the correspondent institution.
  - C. For payments through ACH, the Contractor shall provide the following information:
- (1) Routing transit number of the financial institution receiving payment (same as American Bankers Association identifying number used for FEDLINE).
  - (2) Number of account to which funds is to be deposited.
  - (3) Type of depositor account ("C" for checking, "S" for savings).
- (4) If the Contractor is a new enrollee to the ACH system, a "Payment Information Form," SF 3881, must be completed before payment can be processed.
- D. In the event the Contractor, during the performance of this contract, elects to designate a different financial institution for the receipt of any payment made using electronic funds transfer procedures, notification of such change and the required information specified above must be received by the appropriate Government official 30 days prior to the date such change is to become effective.

- E. The documents furnishing the information required in paragraphs B and C above must be dated and contain the signature, title, and telephone number of the Contractor official authorized to provide it, as well as the Contractor's name and contract number.
- F. Contractor failure to properly designate a financial institution or to provide appropriate payee bank account information may delay payments of amounts otherwise properly due.
  - G. The Contractor shall forward the information required above to:

U.S. Department of Labor, ETA Division of Accounting, Room N-4702 200 Constitution Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20210

### G.3 PAYMENT FOR SUB-LINE ITEMS NOT SEPARATELY PRICED

- (a) If the schedule in this contract contains any contract sub-line items or exhibit sub-line items identified as not separately priced (NSP), it means the unit price for the sub-line items is included in the unit price of another, related line or sub-line item.
- (b) The Contractor shall not invoice the Government for any portion of a contract line item which contains an NSP until-
- (1) The Contractor has delivered the total quantity of all related contract sub-line items or exhibit line items; and
  - (2) The Government has accepted them.
- (c) This clause does not apply to technical data.

# G.4 DOLAR 2952.201-70 CONTRACTING OFFICER'S TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE (COTR) (MAY 2004)

- (a) The COTR (To Be Determined) is hereby designated to act as contracting officer's technical representative (COTR) under this contract.
- (b) The COTR is responsible, as applicable, for: receiving all deliverables; inspecting and accepting the supplies or services provided hereunder in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract; providing direction
- to the contractor which clarifies the contract effort, fills in details or otherwise serves to accomplish the contractual scope of work; evaluating performance; and certifying all invoices/vouchers for acceptance of the supplies or services furnished for payment.
- (c) The COTR does not have the authority to alter the contractor's obligations under the contract, and/or modify any of the expressed terms, conditions, specifications, or cost of the agreement. If, as a result of

# **Section G**

technical discussions, it is desirable to alter/change contractual obligations or the scope of work, the contracting officer must issue such changes.

#### SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

#### H.1 CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE SUITABILITY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

# 1. Background Investigations

a. Background Investigation Requirements. The investigation requirements for contractor employees are based on the risk or sensitivity level designation of the position. The Contracting Officer, COTR, or other DOL Agency's designated official informs the Contractor of the risk or sensitivity level for each contractor employee position. The minimum level of investigation for each risk or sensitivity level is indicated below.

Position Risk/Sensitivity Level: Minimum Investigation Requirement:

Low Risk/Non-sensitive National Agency Check & Inquiries (NACI)
Moderate Risk Minimum Background Investigation (MBI)
High Risk Background Investigation (BI)

Noncritical-Sensitive Minimum Background Investigation (MBI)\*
Critical-Sensitive Single Scope Background Investigation (SSBI)\*

- \* Individuals occupying Critical-Sensitive positions (i.e., require Top Secret security clearances) are subject to reinvestigation every 5 years. Individuals occupying Noncritical-Sensitive positions are subject to reinvestigation every 10 years for Secret security clearances and every 15 years for confidential security clearances.
- b. Conducting Background Investigations. All contract employees require a background investigation. The Office of Personnel Management (OPM) will conduct background investigations for DOL employees and contractor employees. Since OPM only accepts requests from Federal agencies to conduct background investigations, the DOL Agency will make arrangements with the Contractor to send the contractor employee's completed papers to the DOL Agency for submission to OPM.
- c. Payment for Background Investigation. If the DOL Agency bears the cost for background investigations on contractor employees, the designated DOL Agency official will forward the required documents to OPM. If the Contractor bears the cost of the investigations, [method to be determined]

# 2. The Investigation Process

The Contractor shall submit written procedures to the designated DOL Agency official describing the method by which the following investigation requirements will be satisfied.

a. Pre-employment Checks. Before a contractor employee can begin work for DOL, he or she must provide the Contractor with a properly completed OF-306, Declaration for Federal Employment, on which the employee has completed items 1 through 7c, questions 9 through 13, and item 16 as necessary, and has signed item 17. (Attachment [N/A] is a copy of the OF-306. This form can also be found at the following website: http://www.opm.gov/forms.) If the Contractor has not received a completed OF-306 from the contractor employee within 5 days after requesting the form, the Contractor shall notify the designated official.

If the person answers "Yes" to one or more of questions 9 through 13, the Contractor shall notify [the designated official] immediately. The designated DOL Agency official will inform the Contractor whether or not

the contractor employee may work on the contract. Before making this decision the designated DOL Agency official may also require a pre-employment FBI fingerprint check on contract employees. This procedure is described in Chapter 2, Section 6.

- b. Submission of Investigation Documents. The Contractor shall submit the required documents below to the designated DOL Agency official within 14 calendar days of each contractor employee's placement on the contract in a High Risk, Moderate Risk, Low Risk, or Noncritical-Sensitive position. However, the Single Scope Background Investigation must be completed before the contractor employee is placed in a Critical-Sensitive position, unless the Department approves the placement of the contractor employee's placement in the position before the investigation is completed. The specific form that he or she completes depends on the risk or sensitivity level of the work that he or she will perform. These forms can be found on the following website: http://www.opm.gov/forms.
- · The SF-85, Questionnaire for Nonsensitive Positions, is used with positions or work that are designated at the Low Risk level. The minimum investigation required is a National Agency Check and Inquiries.
- · The SF-85P, Questionnaire for Public Trust Positions, is used with positions or work that are designated at the Moderate or High Risk level. The minimum investigation required for the Moderate Risk level is a Minimum Background Investigation. The minimum investigation required for the High Risk level is a Background Investigation.
- · The SF-86, Questionnaire for National Security Positions, is used with positions or work that are designated at the Noncritical-Sensitive or Critical-Sensitive level. The minimum investigation for Noncritical-Sensitive work is a Minimum Background Investigation. The minimum investigation for Critical-Sensitive work is a Single Scope Background Investigation.

The Contractor shall also ensure that each contractor employee is fingerprinted using Form FD-258. The Contractor can get copies of this form from the designated official.

The Contractor shall submit the following completed forms and documents to the [the designated official] for each contractor employee based on the risk or sensitivity level of work that such employee is performing:

Low Risk:	High/Moderate Risk:	Critical/Noncritical Sensitive:
SF-85	SF-85P	SF-86
FD-258 OF-306	FD-258 OF-306	FD-258 OF-306
Application/Resume	Application/resume	Application/resume

c. Temporary Contractor Employees. If the contractor employee is assigned to Low Risk work and is employed on a seasonal, daily, or intermittent basis, or for no more than 180 days, the NACI is not required. However, the Contractor shall submit the fingerprints of the contractor employee to the designated official on a Form FD-258.

# 3. Adjudication

a. Referral of Suitability Issues. When OPM has completed the contractor employee's background investigation, it shall send the report of investigation to the Department's Office of Executive Resources and Personnel Security (OERPS). If the report contains suitability issues, the OERPS will forward the report to the designated DOL Agency official for review and adjudication.

#### Section H

- b. Suitability Standard and Criteria. The suitability standard and criteria are described in Chapter 3, Section 3.
- c. Unfavorable Suitability Determination. If the designated DOL Agency official determines that the contractor employee is unsuitable, the Contracting Officer will inform the Contractor in writing that the contractor employee is denied access to DOL facilities and/or information and information systems. If revoking access to DOL facilities and/or information and information systems negatively impacts the contractor employee's ability to perform, he or she shall be removed from the contract. Any removal of a contractor employee shall not be considered grounds for a delay or adjustment claim from the Contractor.

# 4. Non-disclosure Agreement

The Contractor shall require each contractor employee to review and sign the attached non-disclosure agreement (Attachment N/A) when he or she begins work on the DOL contract. The Contractor must send the signed copy to the designated official.

#### H.2 POST AWARD CONFERENCE

A POST AWARD CONFERENCE WITH THE SUCCESSFUL OFFEROR IS REQUIRED. It will be scheduled within fifteen (15) days of contract award. The conference will be held at:

U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, NW Room (To Be Determined) Washington, DC 20210

#### H.3 FRINGE BENEFITS

Social Security, Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation and any other fringe benefits are a normal practice of the Contractor at the time of final negotiations for this contract and are available to all employees. Fringe benefits from an immediate previous employer which may be continued while employed under this contract are an allowable cost. In no event will duplicate fringe benefits be allowable to an individual under this contract.

# H.4 VACATIONS, SICK-LEAVE HOLIDAYS

The Contractor may grant leave in accordance with its established written policy, provided that policy is accepted by the Contracting Officer or, in the absence of an established policy, leave may be granted as follows:

Vacation: Maximum 2 weeks (10 working days)

Sick Leave: Maximum 2 weeks (10 working days)

Holiday: Maximum of paid holidays

Н-3

Leave shall be accrued at the rate of 5/6 of 1 day per month for each month employed. If the term of this contract is for more than or less than 1 year, the above leave shall be adjusted accordingly.

#### **H.5 TRAVEL AND PER DIEM**

Travel policies as set forth in the Travel Regulations referred to below are required of the Contractor and consultants hereunder. Where the Contractor has a more restrictive travel policy than the Federal Travel Regulations, the more restrictive requirements shall apply.

It is the responsibility of the Contractor to authorize only such per diem allowances as justified by the circumstances affecting the travel. Care should be exercised to prevent fixing per diem rates in excess of those required to meet the necessary authorized subsistence expenses. To this end, consideration should be given to factors which reduce the expenses of the employee such as: known arrangements at temporary duty locations where lodging and meals may be obtained without cost or at prices advantageous to the traveler; established cost experience in the localities where lodging and meals are required; situations where special rates for accommodations have been made available for a particular meeting or conference; the extent to which the traveler is familiar with establishments providing lodging and meals at a lower cost in certain localities, particularly, where repeated travel is involved; and the use of methods of travel where sleeping accommodations are provided as part of the transportation expenses.

All travel shall be at tourist, coach, or less than first class unless itinerary or unavailability dictates otherwise. All temporary duty and local area automobile travel shall be allowed as prescribed by the applicable Travel Regulations.

Copies of applicable Travel Regulations can be obtained as follows at a fee:

- a. Federal Travel Regulations, prescribed by the General Services Administration, for travel in the conterminous 48 United States: Available on a subscription basis from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402, Stock No. 022-001-81003-7.
- b. Joint Travel Regulations, Volume 2, DoD Civilian Personnel, Appendix A, prescribed by the Department of Defense, for travel in Alaska, Hawaii, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and territories and possessions of the United States: Available on a subscription basis from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402, Stock No. 908-010-00000-1.
- c. Standardized Regulations, (Government Civilians, Foreign Areas), Section 925, "Maximum Travel Per Diem Allowances for Foreign Areas," prescribed by the Department of State, for travel in areas not covered in 1 and 2 above: Available on a subscription basis from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402, Stock No. 744-008-00000-0.

### H.6 USE OF AND PAYMENT TO CONSULTANTS

- (a) Consultant(s) hired to perform under this contract may be compensated at a rate for time actually worked (e.g., amount per day, per week, per month, etc.), or at a fixed price for performance of a specific task, or at nominal compensation in accordance with Contractor's policies. However, for the use and payment to consultant(s) prior written approval must be obtained from the Contracting Officer.
- (b) The amount or rate of payment will be determined on a case-by- case basis, taking into account (among any other relevant factors) the relative importance of the duties to be performed, the stature of the

individual in his specialized field, comparable pay for positions under the Classification Act or other Federal pay systems, rates paid by private employers and rates previously paid other experts or consultants for similar work.

(c) The contractor shall maintain a written report for the files on the results on all consultations charged to the contract. This report must include, as a minimum: (1) the consultant's name, dates, hours and amounts charged to the contract; (2) the names of the contractor's staff to which the services are provided; and (3) the results of the subject matter of the consultation.

# H.7 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE COST

Unemployment insurance costs shall be paid by the contractor as they are incurred.

However, in the event billings for Unemployment Insurance costs are received by the contractor after the expiration date of this contract and the billings cover the period that this contract was effective, the Government agrees to reimburse the contractor at the same rate that would have been applicable had the cost been paid as they were incurred.

#### H.8 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING SERVICES

# (a) Accounting

The contractor may procure and utilize such accounting services as are required to establish and maintain an accounting system which reflect accurate, current and complete financial transactions and which meet the standards of the Comptroller General of the United States and the Department of Labor.

# (b) Auditing

The contractor shall audit or have audited subcontractor financial records as may be required to determine, at a minimum, the fiscal integrity of financial transactions and compliance with laws, regulations and administrative requirements.

The U.S. Department of Labor shall be responsible for scheduling all audits of the prime contractor's books, documents, papers and records. The Department will use its own audit resources or shall use certified or public accountants under contract or auditors from another Federal agency.

Cost of Accounting Services and Audit of subcontractors as described herein are allowable cost under this contract. Costs for audits for which the U.S. Department of Labor is responsible are unallowable.

# H.9 PRINTING

Unless otherwise specified in this contract, the contractor shall not engage in, nor subcontract for, any printing (as that term is defined in Title 1 of the Government Printing and Binding Regulations in effect on the effective date of this contract) in connection with the performance of work under this contract: provided, however, that performance of a requirement under this contract involving the reproduction of less than 5,000 production units of any one page or less than 25,000 production units in the aggregate of multiple pages, will not be deemed to be printing. A production unit is defined as one sheet, size 8 by 11 inches, one side only, and one color.

#### H.10 KEY PERSONNEL

The personnel specified below or in attachment to this contract are considered to be essential to the work being performed hereunder. Prior to diverting any of the specified individuals to other programs, the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer reasonably in advance and shall submit justification (including proposed substitutions) in sufficient detail to permit evaluation of the impact on the program. No diversion shall be made by the Contractor without the written consent of the Contracting Officer; Provided, that the Contracting Officer may ratify in writing such diversion and such ratification shall constitute the consent of the Contracting Officer required by this clause. The below list or attachment to this contract may be amended from time to time during the course of the contract to either add or delete personnel, as appropriate.

For the purpose of this contract, the key personnel positions are identified below as:

PROJECT MANAGER
DEPUTY PROJECT MANAGER REPRESENTATIVE(S)

-

# H.11 CONTRACT NUMBER IDENTIFICATION

The Contractor agrees to utilize the number of this contract on all correspondence, communications, reports, vouchers and such other data concerning this contract or delivered hereunder.

### H.12 SUBMISSION OF CORRESPONDENCE

All correspondence relating to contractual aspects shall be directed to the Division of Contract Services, Attention: Division Chief.

# **H.13 OTHER CONTRACTORS**

The Government may undertake or award other contracts for the same, essentially similar, or related work, and the Contractor shall fully cooperate with such other contractors and Government employees. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or by Government employees.

The foregoing paragraph shall be included in the contracts of all Contractors with whom this Contractor will be required to cooperate. The Government shall equitably enforce this clause as to all contractors, to prevent the imposition of unreasonable burdens on any contractor.

# **H.14 LAWS APPLICABLE**

The contractor will perform its duties in accordance with the applicable act, and the regulations, procedures and standards promulgated thereunder. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal and State and Local laws, rules, and regulations which deal with or relate to the employment of persons who perform work or are trained under contract.

Н-6

This contract in no way relieves the Contractor of responsibility for compliance with the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended.

#### H.15 DISPOSITION OF MATERIAL

Upon termination or completion of all work under this contract, the Contractor shall prepare for shipment, deliver F.O.B. destination, or dispose of all materials received from the Government and all residual materials produced in connection with the performance of this contract as may be directed by Contracting Officer, or as specified in other provisions of this contract. All materials produced or required to be delivered under this contract become and remain the property of the Government.

#### H.16 NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

No person shall on the ground of race, religion, color, handicap, national origin, sex, age, political affiliation, or beliefs be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded or otherwise financially assisted, in whole or in part with funds made available hereunder. (b) In addition, this contract and any subcontract hereunder is subjected to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations issued thereunder and found at 29 CFR 31. The Contractor agrees that any service, financial aid, or other benefit to be provided by it under this contract shall be furnished without discrimination because of race, color, sex, or national origin; and that his employment practices shall be subject to the same restrictions to ensure nondiscriminatory treatment of beneficiaries of assistance under the Act.

#### **H.17 FEDERAL REPORTS**

In the event that it subsequently becomes a contractual requirement to collect or record information calling for answers to identical questions from 10 or more persons other than Federal employees, or for information from Federal employees which is to be used for statistical compilations of general public interest, the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980 and 5 CRF 1320 shall apply to this contract. No plan, questionnaire, interview guide or similar device for collecting formation (whether repetitive or single-time) may be used without first obtaining clearance from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB).

The contractor shall obtain the required OMB clearance through the Project Officer before expending any funds or making public contracts for the collection of data. The authority to expend funds and to proceed with the collection of data shall be issued in writing by the Contracting Officer.

#### H.18 DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

The Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any information regarding applicants, project participants or their immediate families which may be obtained through application forms, interviews, test reports from public agencies or counselors, or any other source. Without the permission of the applicant or participant, such information shall be divulged only as necessary for purposes related to the performance or evaluation of the contract and to persons having responsibilities under the contract, including those furnishing services to the projects under subcontracts.

#### H.19 ELIMINATION OF SEXIST LANGUAGE AND ART WORK

All written materials issued by the Contractor or grantee shall conform to the following guidelines for eliminating sexist language and art work:

- (a) Avoid the use of sex reference in job titles. Titles should conform to the Census Bureau's occupational classification system and the most recently published edition of the Dictionary of Occupational Titles.
  - -- Longshore workers instead of longshoremen.
  - (b) Avoid the use of male and female gender word forms.
    - -- Aviator to include men and women pilots, not aviatrix.
  - (c) Include both sexes by using terms that refer to people as a whole.
    - -- Human beings or people instead of mankind.
- (d) Avoid the use of masculine and feminine pronouns or adjectives in referring to a hypothetical person or people in general. Change sentences such as: The average American worker spends 2 years of his life in the workforce.
- -- By rewording to eliminate unnecessary gender pronouns and adjectives. (The average American worker spends 20 years in the workforce.)
  - -- By recasting into the plural. (Most Americans spend 20 years of their lives in the workforce.)
- -- By replacing the masculine or feminine pronoun or adjective with "one", "you", "he or she", "her or him", or his or her". (An average American spends 20 years of his or her life in the workforce.)
- (e) Refer to both men and women in such generic terms as economist, doctor, or lawyer. Identify sex through the use of pronouns.
  - -- The lawyer made her final summation.
  - (f) Avoid the use of stereotyped terms or expressions such as "man-sized" job.
    - -- Employee-years and employee-hours (or staff-hours) instead of man-years and man-hours.
  - (g) The use of art work in publications should conform to the following guidelines:
    - (i) Strive to use racially and sexually balanced designs.
    - (ii) Depict both men and women in art work on general subject matters.
    - (iii) Show men and women in a variety of roles in photographs, illustrations, and drawings.
    - -- Show women and men as managers and skilled laborers.

#### H.20 HAZARDOUS OCCUPATION ORDERS

The Contractor shall comply with the Hazardous Occupation Orders issued pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act and set forth at 20 CFR 570.50 et seq. with respect to the employment of youths less than 18 years of age and the Child Labor Standards of 29 CFR 570.31 et seq. with respect to the employment of youths aged 14 and 15.

# H.21 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (FAR-Subpart 28.3)

In accordance with the Federal Acquisition Regulation, 48 CFR, Clause 52.228-7 entitled, "Insurance-Liability to Third Persons" the following kinds and amounts of insurance must be procured and maintained in force during the lifetime of the above numbered contract.

- A. Workers' Compensation In the amounts required by State law or the United States Longshore workers' and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act (33 U.S.C. 901).
- B. Occupational Diseases Insurance As required by applicable law. In any area where all occupational diseases are not compensable under applicable law, insurance for occupational diseases shall be secured under the employer liability section of your insurance policy, minimum per accident \$100,000.
- C. Employer Liability This insurance is to cover any liability imposed upon an employer, by law, for damages on account of personal injuries, including death resulting therefrom, sustained by their employees by reason of accident.
- D. General Liability Insurance (Bodily Injury) This insurance protects the insured against claims arising from bodily injury or death to third parties occurring on it business premises or through its operations except those arising from motor vehicles away from the premises, those covered by any Workers' Compensation law, and other exclusions stated in the policy. The required coverage for bodily injury shall be \$200,000 per person and \$500,000 per occurrence.
- E. Automobile Liability The required coverage is \$200,000 per person and \$500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and \$20,000 per occurrence for property damage.
- F. The policies evidencing such insurance as required under this contract shall contain the following endorsement:

"No cancellation, termination, or modification of this policy shall take effect prior to the expiration of 35 days after written notice of the cancellation, termination or modification together with suitable identification of the policy and name insured has been sent by registered letter to the Government representative at the address stated below:

Name of Contracting Officer: Keith A. Bond

Address: USDOL/ETA/OGCM/DCS 200 Constitution Ave., N.W. Room N-4655 Washington, D.C. 20210

The types and minimum limits reflected above for vehicle insurance shall apply to any vehicle operated or used in connection with performance of official business under this contract. In the event a privately-owned

Н-9

vehicle is used, the Government's share of insurance premiums, including any additional coverage required to conform with the above limits, shall be prorated in accordance with the vehicle's actual use while conducting business under the terms of this contract.

# H.22 DATA COLLECTION FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

The Contractor shall be responsible for informing any grantee that they have been requested to collect information for the Department of Labor. The collection of such data shall be the responsibility of the Contractor solely. The Contractor may request assistance from grantees in locating the data. However, the actual data gathering must be done by the Contractor.

#### H.23 RESTRICTION ON USE OF DOL FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

In accordance with the cost principles incorporated in the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) at 31.205-22, lobbying costs (direct or indirect) are unallowable under this agreement. The exclusion of lobbying costs using Department of Labor funds is not intended to penalize, discourage, or prevent lobbying activities by utilizing non-Federal funds.

### **H.24 PUBLICATION OF MATERIALS**

The Contractor shall receive permission from the Contracting Officer prior to publishing any works performed under this contract. Further, the Contractor shall acknowledge the support of the Department of Labor whenever publicizing any work performed under this contract. To implement the foregoing, the Contractor shall include in any publication resulting from work performed under this contract, an acknowledgement substantially the same as follows:

"This project has been funded, either wholly or in part, with Federal funds from the Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration under Contract Number [TBD] the contents of this publication do not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Department of Labor, nor does mention of trade names, commercial products, or organizations imply endorsement of same by the U.S. Government."

# H.25 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT - SERVICE (FAR 17.208(q))

- 1. The Government may extend the terms of this contract by written notice to the Contractor at least 60 calendar days before the contract expires. This notice does not commit the Government to an extension.
- 2. If the Government exercises this option, the extended contract shall be considered to include this option provision.
- 3. The initial period of this contract may be extended by one year, at estimated costs and indirect costs as follows:

Option			
Year	Estimated Cost	Indirect Cost	Total Estimated Cost
1			

2

3

The total duration of this contract, including the exercise of any options under this clause, shall not exceed 5 years.

4. Estimated costs, including any indirect costs, for the options years shall be determined at the time of contract execution. Any anticipated deviations from total preestimated option year costs must be presented to the Contracting Officer in writing, with an explanation and justification of the anticipated deviation(s), 10 calendar days after receipt of notice by the contractor of the Government's intention to exercise the option to extend the term of the contract. No deviations from the total pre-established option years estimated costs shall be permitted without the written consent of the Contracting Officer. Deviations which would increase the total pre-established option year estimated costs by more than 10 percent shall not be permitted under any circumstances.

#### **H.26 INDIRECT COSTS**

In order to avoid major audit problems, disallowed costs, and to receive timely reimbursement of indirect costs, contractors should take those necessary steps to comply with this clause as well as the critical timeframes for submission of indirect cost proposals.

You are governed by one of the categories of cost principles listed below. Please comply with your cost principles as appropriate to your organization. (1) Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subparts 31 and 42 apply to private-for-profit contractors. (2) OMB Circular A-87 applies to state and local governments and Federally-recognized Indian Tribes. States receiving JTPA formula-allocated funds can elect to waive A-87 coverage. (3) OMB Circulars A-21, A-88 and FAR 42.705-3 apply to educational institutions. (4) OMB Circular A-122 applies to nonprofit institutions excluding those addressed in the preceding as well as hospitals.

The total amount of contract funds will not be increased to reimburse organizations for higher indirect cost rates than those rates identified in this clause. Also, the contractor must obtain approval from the Contracting Officer to transfer funds from other budget line items to the indirect cost budget line items to accommodate higher indirect cost rates.

The foregoing does not relieve the contractor of any other administrative cost limitations regarding the contract.

Billing rates are only temporary for the 90 days period from the effective date of your contract. Failure to submit an acceptable indirect cost proposal to your cognizant agency for provisional rates within the aforementioned 90-day period means that you shall not receive any further reimbursement of your indirect billing rates until the provisional rate proposal is received. Also, action may be taken to recoup all indirect costs already paid to you.

A private-for-profit contractor is to submit an acceptable indirect cost proposal for final rates to its cognizant agency within 90 days after the end of its fiscal year. All other contractors must submit their final rate proposals within 6 months after the end of their fiscal year.

Block 1 or 2 is completed below as appropriate for affected new contracts or modifications.

BLOCK 1

	Check	
Rate Category	One	Your rates and bases are
Billing		Overhead
Provisional		Base
Final		(and, if applicable)
See Attached		General &
Agreement		Administrative
Other (Explain)		Base

Effective from	_ 10	or ii muiti-year, piease exp	piain nere:	
BLOC	CK 2			
(For special indi	rect cost o	eilings)		
Special percent ceiling Administrative. Base:	is %	for (usually overhead) and if	applicable,	_ % for General and
OR				
Special dollar ceiling in Administrative. Base:	s \$	for (usually overhead) and if a	pplicable, \$	for General and
Effective from	to	or if multi-year, please explain	n here:	

If applicable for ceilings, please describe here any situation whereby the bases in Block 2 above differ from the bases in Block 1 above. Also, the maximum reimbursement for indirect costs under this contract will be based on the lower of the negotiated rates or ceilings.

If the Department of Labor (DOL) is your cognizant agency, proposals for indirect cost rates and supporting data and documentation should be sent to the Division of Cost Determination (DCD) Negotiator in the appropriate DOL Regional Office or if applicable, to the DCD National Office whose address and phone number is listed below. In addition, if you do not know your cognizant Federal agency, please call the phone number listed below:

Director, Division of Cost Determination (DCD) U.S. Department of Labor, OASAM 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room S-1510 Washington, D.C. 20210 Tel. (202) 693-4102

#### H.27 PHASE IN/PHASE OUT PHASE

In the event that it becomes necessary to effect a project transition to another contractor, and in order to assure a smooth transition and provide continuity of services to the Government, the contractor hereby agrees to fully cooperate with such other contractor(s) and the U.S. Government.

The contractor shall not commit or permit any action which will intentionally interfere with the performance of any other contractor(s) or the U.S. Government. Said transition will include, but is not limited to, access to and/or transfer of contractual documents, including other materials developed under this contract and other items deemed necessary and appropriate, relating to performance of this contract.

If any contractual documents have proprietary data, the contractor will be required to ensure that such information is treated in a confidential manner.

The Phase-In period is estimated to require one hundred fifty (150) calendar days, shall commence immediately upon award of the new contract, and will not extend beyond the present contract expiration date unless so modified by the Contracting Officer.

# **PART II - CONTRACT CLAUSES**

# **SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSES**

# I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE	DATE
52.204-7	CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (OCT 2003)	OCT 2003
52.204-9	PERSONAL IDENTITY VERIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL (JAN 2006)	JAN 2006
52.215-8	ORDER OF PRECEDENCEUNIFORM CONTRACT FORMAT	OCT 1997
52.219-6 52.219-25	NOTICE OF TOTAL SMALL BUSINESS SET-ASIDE SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PROGRAMDISADVANTAGED STATUS AND REPORTING	JUN 2003 OCT 1999
52.222-1	NOTICE TO THE GOVERNMENT OF LABOR DISPUTES	FEB 1997
52.222-21	PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES	FEB 1999
52.222-26	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	APR 2002
52.222-50	COMBATING TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS	APR 2006
52.223-5	POLLUTION PREVENTION AND RIGHT-TO-KNOW	AUG 2003
52.228-5	INSURANCEWORK ON A GOVERNMENT INSTALLATION	JAN 1997
52.232-1	PAYMENTS	APR 1984
52.232-8	DISCOUNTS FOR PROMPT PAYMENT	FEB 2002
52.232-11	EXTRAS	APR 1984
52.232-23	ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS	JAN 1986
52.232-33	PAYMENT BY ELECTRONIC FUNDSCENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION	OCT 2003
52.233-1	DISPUTES	JUL 2002
52.233-3	PROTEST AFTER AWARD	AUG 1996
52.233-4	APPLICABLE LAW FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT CLAIM	OCT 2004
52.237-2	PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS, EQUIPMENT, AND VEGETATION	APR 1984
52.237-3	CONTINUITY OF SERVICES	JAN 1991
52.243-1	CHANGESFIXED PRICE	AUG 1987

DOL061RP20093	Section I	
	ALTERNATE I (APR 1984)	
52.244-6	SUBCONTRACTS FOR COMMERCIAL ITEMS	FEB 2006
	AND COMMERCIAL COMPONENTS	
52.245-2	GOVERNMENT PROPERTY (FIXED-PRICE	APR 1984
	CONTRACTS) ALTERNATE I (APR 1984)	
52.245-9	USE AND CHARGES	AUG 2005
52.249-1	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE	APR 1984
	GOVERNMENT (FIXED-PRICE) (SHORT FORM)	
52.249-8	DEFAULT (FIXED-PRICE SUPPLY AND SERVICE)	APR 1984
52.253-1	COMPUTER GENERATED FORMS	JAN 1991

# 1.2 52.207-3 RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL OF EMPLOYMENT (MAY 2006)

- (a) The Contractor shall give Government personnel who have been or will be adversely affected or separated as a result of award of this contract the right of first refusal for employment openings under the contract in positions for which they are qualified, if that employment is consistent with post-Government employment conflict of interest standards.
- (b) Within 10 days after contract award, the Contracting Officer will provide to the Contractor a list of all Government personnel who have been or will be adversely affected or separated as a result of award of this contract.
- (c) The Contractor shall report to the Contracting Officer the names of individuals identified on the list that are hired within 90 days after contract performance begins. This report shall be forwarded within 120 days after contract performance begins.

# 1.3 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000)

- (a) The Government may extend the term of this contract by written notice to the Contractor within 60 days; provided that the Government gives the Contractor a preliminary written notice of its intent to extend at least 60 days before the contract expires. The preliminary notice does not commit the Government to an extension.
- (b) If the Government exercises this option, the extended contract shall be considered to include this option clause.
- (c) The total duration of this contract, including the exercise of any options under this clause, shall not exceed 5 years.

# 1.4 52.219-14 LIMITATIONS ON SUBCONTRACTING (DEC 1996)

- (a) This clause does not apply to the unrestricted portion of a partial set-aside.
- (b) By submission of an offer and execution of a contract, the Offeror/Contractor agrees that in performance of the contract in the case of a contract for --

- (1) SERVICES (EXCEPT CONSTRUCTION). At least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern.
- (2) SUPPLIES (OTHER THAN PROCUREMENT FROM A NONMANUFACTURER IN SUCH SUPPLIES). The concern shall perform work for at least 50 percent of the cost of manufacturing the supplies, not including the cost of materials.
- (3) GENERAL CONSTRUCTION. The concern will perform at least 15 percent of the cost of the contract, not including the cost of materials, with its own employees.
- (4) CONSTRUCTION BY SPECIAL TRADE CONTRACTORS. The concern will perform at least 25 percent of the cost of the contract, not including the cost of materials, with its own employees.

# 1.5 52.222-43 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT AND SERVICE CONTRACT ACT - PRICE ADJUSTMENT (MULTIPLE YEAR AND OPTION CONTRACTS) (MAY 1989)

- (a) This clause applies to both contracts subject to area prevailing wage determinations and contracts subject to collective bargaining agreements.
- (b) The Contractor warrants that the prices in this contract do not include any allowance for any contingency to cover increased costs for which adjustment is provided under this clause.
- (c) The wage determination, issued under the Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended, (41 U.S.C. 351, et seq.), by the Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, current on the anniversary date of a multiple year contract or the beginning of each renewal option period, shall apply to this contract. If no such determination has been made applicable to this contract, then the Federal minimum wage as established by section 6(a)(1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, (29 U.S.C. 206) current on the anniversary date of a multiple year contract or the beginning of each renewal option period, shall apply to this contract.
- (d) The contract price or contract unit price labor rates will be adjusted to reflect the Contractor's actual increase or decrease in applicable wages and fringe benefits to the extent that the increase is made to comply with or the decrease is voluntarily made by the Contractor as a result of:
- (1) The Department of Labor wage determination applicable on the anniversary date of the multiple year contract, or at the beginning of the renewal option period. For example, the prior year wage determination required a minimum wage rate of \$4.00 per hour. The Contractor chose to pay \$4.10. The new wage determination increases the minimum rate to \$4.50 per hour. Even if the Contractor voluntarily increases the rate to \$4.75 per hour, the allowable price adjustment is \$.40 per hour;
- (2) An increased or decreased wage determination otherwise applied to the contract by operation of law; or
- (3) An amendment to the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 that is enacted after award of this contract, affects the minimum wage, and becomes applicable to this contract under law.

#### Section I

- (e) Any adjustment will be limited to increases or decreases in wages and fringe benefits as described in paragraph (c) of this clause, and the accompanying increases or decreases in social security and unemployment taxes and workers' compensation insurance, but shall not otherwise include any amount for general and administrative costs, overhead, or profit.
- (f) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer of any increase claimed under this clause within 30 days after receiving a new wage determination unless this notification period is extended in writing by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Contracting Officer of any decrease under this clause, but nothing in the clause shall preclude the Government from asserting a claim within the period permitted by law. The notice shall contain a statement of the amount claimed and any relevant supporting data, including payroll records that the Contracting Officer may reasonably require. Upon agreement of the parties, the contract price or contract unit price labor rates shall be modified in writing. The Contractor shall continue performance pending agreement on or determination of any such adjustment and its effective date.
- (g) The Contracting Officer or an authorized representative shall have access to and the right to examine any directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor until the expiration of 3 years after final payment under the contract.

# I.6 52.222-44 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT AND SERVICE CONTRACT ACT - PRICE ADJUSTMENT (FEB 2002)

- (a) This clause applies to both contracts subject to area prevailing wage determinations and contracts subject to Contractor collective bargaining agreements.
- (b) The Contractor warrants that the prices in this contract do not include any allowance for any contingency to cover increased costs for which adjustment is provided under this clause.
- (c) The contract price or contract unit price labor rates will be adjusted to reflect increases or decreases by the Contractor in wages and fringe benefits to the extent that these increases or decreases are made to comply with -
  - (1) An increased or decreased wage determination applied to this contract by operation of law; or
  - (2) An amendment to the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 that is enacted subsequent to award of this contract, affects the minimum wage, and becomes applicable to this contract under law.
- (d) Any such adjustment will be limited to increases or decreases in wages and fringe benefits as described in paragraph (c) of this clause, and to the accompanying increases or decreases in social security and unemployment taxes and workers' compensation insurance; it shall not otherwise include any amount for general and administrative costs, overhead, or profit.
- (e) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer of any increase claimed under this clause within 30 days after the effective date of the wage change, unless this period is extended by the Contracting Officer in writing. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Contracting Officer of any decrease under this clause, but nothing in the clause shall preclude the Government from asserting a claim within the period permitted by law. The notice shall contain a statement of the amount claimed and any relevant supporting data that the Contracting Officer may reasonably require. Upon agreement of the parties, the contract price or contract unit price labor rates shall be modified in writing. The Contractor shall continue performance pending agreement on or determination of any such adjustment and its effective date.

#### **Section I**

(f) The Contracting Officer or an authorized representative shall, until the expiration of 3 years after final payment under the contract, have access to and the right to examine any directly pertinent books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor.

# I. 7 52.232-25 PROMPT PAYMENT (FEB 2002) Alternate I (FEB 2002)

Notwithstanding any other payment clause in this contract, the Government will make invoice payments under the terms and conditions specified in this clause. The Government considers payment as being made on the day a check is dated or the date of an electronic funds transfer (EFT). Definitions of pertinent terms are set forth in sections 2.101, 32.001, and 32.902 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. All days referred to in this clause are calendar days, unless otherwise specified. (However, see paragraph (a)(4) of this clause concerning payments due on Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays.)

- (a) Invoice payments--
  - (1) Due date.
- (i) Except as indicated in paragraphs (a)(2) and (c) of this clause, the due date for making invoice payments by the designated payment office is the later of the following two events:
- (A) The 30th day after the designated billing office receives a proper invoice from the Contractor (except as provided in paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this clause).
- (B) The 30th day after Government acceptance of supplies delivered or services performed. For a final invoice, when the payment amount is subject to contract settlement actions, acceptance is deemed to occur on the effective date of the contract settlement.
- (ii) If the designated billing office fails to annotate the invoice with the actual date of receipt at the time of receipt, the invoice payment due date is the 30th day after the date of the Contractor's invoice, provided the designated billing office receives a proper invoice and there is no disagreement over quantity, quality, or Contractor compliance with contract requirements.
- (2) Contractor's invoice. The Contractor shall prepare and submit invoices to the designated billing office specified in the contract. A proper invoice must include the items listed in paragraphs (a)(3)(i) through (a)(3)(x) of this clause. If the invoice does not comply with these requirements, the designated billing office will return it within 7 days after receipt (3 days for meat, meat food products, or fish; 5 days for perishable agricultural commodities, dairy products, edible fats or oils, and food products prepared from edible fats or oils), with the reasons why it is not a proper invoice. The Government will take into account untimely notification when computing any interest penalty owed the Contractor.
  - (i) Name and address of the Contractor.
- (ii) Invoice date and invoice number. (The Contractor should date invoices as close as possible to the date of the mailing or transmission.)
- (iii) Contract number or other authorization for supplies delivered or services performed (including order number and contract line item number).

#### **Section I**

- (iv) Description, quantity, unit of measure, unit price, and extended price of supplies delivered or services performed.
- (v) Shipping and payment terms (e.g., shipment number and date of shipment, discount for prompt payment terms). Bill of lading number and weight of shipment will be shown for shipments on Government bills of lading.
- (vi) Name and address of Contractor official to whom payment is to be sent (must be the same as that in the contract or in a proper notice of assignment).
- (vii) Name (where practicable), title, phone number, and mailing address of person to notify in the event of a defective invoice.
- (viii) Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). The Contractor shall include its TIN on the invoice only if required elsewhere in this contract.
  - (ix) Electronic funds transfer (EFT) banking information.
- (A) The Contractor shall include EFT banking information on the invoice only if required elsewhere in this contract.
- (B) If EFT banking information is not required to be on the invoice, in order for the invoice to be a proper invoice, the Contractor shall have submitted correct EFT banking information in accordance with the applicable solicitation provision (e.g., 52.232- 38, Submission of Electronic Funds Transfer Information with Offer), contract clause (e.g., 52.232-33, Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer--Central Contractor Registration, or 52.232-34, Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer--Other Than Central Contractor Registration), or applicable agency procedures.
  - (C) EFT banking information is not required if the Government waived the requirement to pay by EFT.
  - (x) Any other information or documentation required by the contract (e.g., evidence of shipment).
- (3) Interest penalty. The designated payment office will pay an interest penalty automatically, without request from the Contractor, if payment is not made by the due date and the conditions listed in paragraphs (a)(4)(i) through (a)(4)(iii) of this clause are met, if applicable. However, when the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the designated payment office may make payment on the following working day without incurring a late payment interest penalty.
  - (i) The designated billing office received a proper invoice.
- (ii) The Government processed a receiving report or other Government documentation authorizing payment, and there was no disagreement over quantity, quality, or Contractor compliance with any contract term or condition.
- (iii) In the case of a final invoice for any balance of funds due the Contractor for supplies delivered or services performed, the amount was not subject to further contract settlement actions between the Government and the Contractor.
- (4) Computing penalty amount. The Government will compute the interest penalty in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget prompt payment regulations at 5 CFR part 1315.

#### DOL061RP20093

#### Section I

- (i) For the sole purpose of computing an interest penalty that might be due the Contractor, Government acceptance is deemed to occur constructively on the 7th day (unless otherwise specified in this contract) after the Contractor delivers the supplies or performs the services in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract, unless there is a disagreement over quantity, quality, or Contractor compliance with a contract provision. If actual acceptance occurs within the constructive acceptance period, the Government will base the determination of an interest penalty on the actual date of acceptance. The constructive acceptance requirement does not, however, compel Government officials to accept supplies or services, perform contract administration functions, or make payment prior to fulfilling their responsibilities.
- (ii) The prompt payment regulations at 5 CFR 1315.10(c) do not require the Government to pay interest penalties if payment delays are due to disagreement between the Government and the Contractor over the payment amount or other issues involving contract compliance, or on amounts temporarily withheld or retained in accordance with the terms of the contract. The Government and the Contractor shall resolve claims involving disputes and any interest that may be payable in accordance with the clause at FAR 52.233-1, Disputes.
- (5) Discounts for prompt payment. The designated payment office will pay an interest penalty automatically, without request from the Contractor, if the Government takes a discount for prompt payment improperly. The Government will calculate the interest penalty in accordance with the prompt payment regulations at 5 CFR part 1315.
  - (6) Additional interest penalty.
- (i) The designated payment office will pay a penalty amount, calculated in accordance with the prompt payment regulations at 5 CFR part 1315 in addition to the interest penalty amount only if--
  - (A) The Government owes an interest penalty of \$1 or more;
- (B) The designated payment office does not pay the interest penalty within 10 days after the date the invoice amount is paid; and
- (C) The Contractor makes a written demand to the designated payment office for additional penalty payment, in accordance with paragraph (a)(7)(ii) of this clause, postmarked not later than 40 days after the invoice amount is paid.
- (ii)(A) The Contractor shall support written demands for additional penalty payments with the following data. The Government will not request any additional data. The Contractor shall--
- (1) Specifically assert that late payment interest is due under a specific invoice, and request payment of all overdue late payment interest penalty and such additional penalty as may be required;
  - (2) Attach a copy of the invoice on which the unpaid late payment interest is due; and
  - (3) State that payment of the principal has been received, including the date of receipt.
  - (B) If there is no postmark or the postmark is illegible--
- (1) The designated payment office that receives the demand will annotate it with the date of receipt, provided the demand is received on or before the 40th day after payment was made; or

I-7

#### DOL061RP20093

#### **Section I**

- (2) If the designated payment office fails to make the required annotation, the Government will determine the demand's validity based on the date the Contractor has placed on the demand, provided such date is no later than the 40th day after payment was made.
- (iii) The additional penalty does not apply to payments regulated by other Government regulations (e.g., payments under utility contracts subject to tariffs and regulation).
- (b) Contract financing payment. If this contract provides for contract financing, the Government will make contract financing payments in accordance with the applicable contract financing clause.
- (c) Fast payment procedure due dates. If this contract contains the clause at 52.213-1, Fast Payment Procedure, payments will be made within 15 days after the date of receipt of the invoice.
- (d) Overpayments. If the Contractor becomes aware of a duplicate payment or that the Government has otherwise overpaid on an invoice payment, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Contracting Officer and request instructions for disposition of the overpayment.
- (e) Invoices for interim payments. For interim payments under this cost-reimbursement contract for services--
  - (1) Paragraphs (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4)(ii), (a)(4)(iii), and (a)(5)(i) do not apply;
- (2) For purposes of computing late payment interest penalties that may apply, the due date for payment is the 30th day after the designated billing office receives a proper invoice; and
- (3) The contractor shall submit invoices for interim payments in accordance with paragraph (a) of FAR 52.216-7, Allowable Cost and Payment. If the invoice does not comply with contract requirements, it will be returned within 7 days after the date the designated billing office received the invoice.

# 1.8 52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998)

This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text. Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make their full text available. Also, the full text of a clause may be accessed electronically at this/these address(es):

http://www.arnet.gov/far

I-8

DOL061RP20093 Section J

# PART III - LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS

# **SECTION J - LIST OF ATTACHMENTS**

	TACHMENT NUMBER	TITLE	NO. PAGES
J.1 C	ONTRACT PRICING F	PROPOSAL COVER SHEET, SF 1411	(1 page)
J.2 C	OST AND PRICE ANA	LYSIS, ETA 8555	(8 pages)
J.3 S	TATEMENT OF FINAN	ICIAL CAPABILITY, ETA 8554,	(2 pages)
J.4 C	OST CONTRACTOR'S	INVOICE, ETA 3100-1	(1 page)
J.5 C	OST CONTRACTOR'S	DETAILED STATEMENT OF COST, ETA 3-2	(1 page)
J.6 \	/ETS-100 - FEDERAL OMB 1293-000	CONTRACTOR VETERANS EMPLOYMENT REPORT, 5	(2 pages)
J.7 P	AST PERFORMANCE	REFERENCE INFORMATION	(2 pages)
J.8 P	AST PERFORMANCE	EVALUATION QUESTIONNAIRE	(2 pages)
J.9 1	TE 3.0 – Government TE 3.1 – Government TE 3.2 – Government TE 3.3 – Government TE 5.1 – Administrativ TE 5.2 – Logistics Sup TE 5.3 – Program Sup TE 5.4 – Information TE 5.5 – Policy and Pl TE 5.6 – Program Mai	Locations Requirements Summary Furnished Facilities Furnished Equipment Furnished Materials Furnished Information Technology Systems we and Customer Support Workload oport Workload oport Workload Technology and Management Support Workload lanning Support Workload nagement and Outreach Support Workload	
J.10 MODIFIED RESUME			(1 page)
J.11	TE 3.2 – Government-Furnished Materials TE 3.3 – Government-Furnished Information Technology Systems TE 5.1 – Administrative and Customer Support Workload TE 5.2 – Logistics Support Workload TE 5.3 – Program Support Workload TE 5.4 – Information Technology and Management Support Workload TE 5.5 – Policy and Planning Support Workload TE 5.6 – Program Management and Outreach Support Workload TE 5.7 – Procurement and Accounting Workload  MODIFIED RESUME  PWS, TECHNICAL EXHIBIT, AND SOLICIATION QUESTION & EVALUATION TEMPLATE  PROFESSIONAL PERSONNEL TECHNICAL SKILL SETS  (2 pages)		
J.12		Bureau Professional Personnel Ional Personnel (a) Ional Personnel (b)	

**J-1** 

#### Section K

#### PART IV - REPRESENTATIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

# SECTION K - REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF OFFERORS

# K.1 52.203-2 CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PRICE DETERMINATION (APR 1985)

- (a) The offeror certifies that--
- (1) The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other offeror or competitor relating to-
  - (i) those prices;
  - (ii) the intention to submit an offer;, or
  - (iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered;
- (2) The prices in this offer have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by the offeror, directly or indirectly, to any other offeror or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a negotiated solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
- (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the offeror to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit an offer for the purpose of restricting competition.
  - (b) Each signature on the offer is considered to be a certification by the signatory that the signatory-
- (1) Is the person in the offeror's organization responsible for determining the prices being offered in this bid or proposal, and that the signatory has not participated and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; or
- (2) (i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the following principals in certifying that those principals have not participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above


[Insert full name of person(s) in the offeror's organization responsible for determining the prices offered in the bid or proposal, and the title of his or her position in the offeror's organization];

- (ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the principals named in subdivision (b)(2)(i) above have not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and
- (iii) As an agent, has not personally participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above.

K-1

#### Section K

(c) If the offeror deletes or modifies subparagraph (a)(2) of this provision, the offeror must furnish with its offer a signed statement setting forth in detail the circumstances of the disclosure.

# K.2 52.204-8 ANNUAL REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS (JAN 2006)

- (a)(1) The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code for this acquisition is 561990.
  - (2) The small business size standard is \$6.5 million.
- (3) The small business size standard for a concern which submits an offer in its own name, other than on a construction or service contract, but which proposes to furnish a product which it did not itself manufacture, is 500 employees.
- (b)(1) If the clause at 52.204-7, Central Contractor Registration, is included in this solicitation, paragraph (c) of this provision applies.
- (2) If the clause at 52.204-7 is not included in this solicitation, and the offeror is currently registered in CCR, and has completed the ORCA electronically, the offeror may choose to use paragraph (c) of this provision instead of completing the corresponding individual representations and certifications in the solicitation. The offeror shall indicate which option applies by checking one of the following boxes:
- [ ] (i) Paragraph (c) apply. [ ] (ii) Paragraph (c) does not apply and the offeror has completed the individual representations and certifications in the solicitation.
- (c) The offeror has completed the annual representations and certifications electronically via the Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA) website at http://orca.bpn.gov. After reviewing the ORCA database information, the offeror verifies by submission of the offer that the representations and certifications currently posted electronically have been entered or updated within the last 12 months, are current, accurate, complete, and applicable to this solicitation (including the business size standard applicable to the NAICS code referenced for this solicitation), as of the date of this offer and are incorporated in this offer by reference (see FAR 4.1201); except for the changes identified below [offeror to insert changes, identifying change by clause number, title, date]. These amended representation(s) and/or certification(s) are also incorporated in this offer and are current, accurate, and complete as of the date of this offer.

FAR Clause #	Title	Date	Change

Any changes provided by the offeror are applicable to this solicitation only, and do not result in an update to the representations and certifications posted on ORCA.

# K.3 52.222-22 PREVIOUS CONTRACTS AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS (FEB 1999)

The offeror represents that--

(a) It [] has, [] has not participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal Opportunity clause of this solicitation; the clause originally contained in Section 310 of Executive Order No. 10925, or the clause contained in Section 201 of Executive Order No. 11114;

K-2

# **Section K**

(b) It [] has, [] has not filed all required compliance r	eports; and
(c) Representations indicating submission of required c subcontractors, will be obtained before subcontract awar	
K.4 52.222-25 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMPLIAN	ICE (APR 1984)
The offeror represents that	
(a) It [] has developed and has on file, [] has not developed stablishment, affirmative action programs required by the CFR 60-1 and 60-2), or (b) It [] has not previously had comprograms requirement of the rules and regulations of the	ne rules and regulations of the Secretary of Labor (41 contracts subject to the written affirmative action
K.5 SIGNATURE BLOCK	
I, the undersigned, do hereby attest that all representatrue.	itions and certifications made in this Section K are
Also, I, the undersigned, am aware of the penalties prestatements in offers; and I am legally authorized to bind	
(Signature)	(Date)
(Typed or Printed Name)	
(Title)	
(Solicitation Number)	
(Name of Company/Organization Represented)	_
(Address, including Zip Code)	
(Telephone Number, including Area Code)	
(DUNS)	

K-3

# SECTION L - INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS, AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS

# L.1 NOTICE LISTING SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following solicitation provisions pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the FAR provision at FAR "52.252-1 SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section L of this solicitation. See FAR 52.252-1 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a provision.

NUMBER	TITLE	DATE
52.215-1	INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORSCOMPETITIVE ACQUISITION	JAN 2004
52.219-24	SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PROGRAMTARGETS	OCT 2000

#### L.2 52.207-1 NOTICE OF STANDARD COMPETITION (MAY 2006)

- (a) This solicitation is part of a standard competition under Office of Management and Budget Circular No. A-76 (Revised), Performance of Commercial Activities, dated May 29, 2003 (hereafter "the Circular"), to determine whether to accomplish the specified work under contract or by Government performance.
- (b) The Government will evaluate private sector offers, the agency tender, and public reimbursable tenders, as provided in this solicitation and the Circular.
- (c) A performance decision resulting from this standard competition will be publicly announced in accordance with the Circular. If the performance decision favors a private sector offeror, a contract will be awarded. If the performance decision favors an agency or a public reimbursable tender, the Contracting Officer shall establish, respectively, either a Most Efficient Organization letter of obligation or a fee-for-service agreement, as those terms are defined in the Circular.
- (d) As provided in the Circular, directly interested parties may file contests, which are governed by the procedures in Federal Acquisition Regulation 22.103. Until resolution of any contest, or the expiration of the time for filing a contest, only legal agents for directly interested parties shall have access to the certified standard competition form, the agency tender, and public reimbursable tenders.

# L.3 52.216-1 TYPE OF CONTRACT (APR 1984)

The Government contemplates award of a (Firm Fixed Price) contract resulting from this solicitation.

# L.4 52.237-1 SITE VISIT (APR 1984)

Offerors or quoters are urged and expected to inspect the site where services are to be performed and to satisfy themselves regarding all general and local conditions that may affect the cost of contract performance, to the extent that the information is reasonably obtainable. In no event shall failure to inspect the site constitute grounds for a claim after contract award.

Please contact Vera Montague at montague.vera@dol.gov for scheduling of a date and time for the site visit.

#### L.5 PAST PERFORMANCE

PLEASE NOTE: Pursuant to OMB Circular A-76 (revised May 29, 2003), Attachment B, the agency tender is not required to include past performance information.

Offerors shall submit the following information as part of their proposal for both the offeror and proposed major subcontractors:

A. A list of five (5) "relevant" contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three (3) years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in process. The reference should specifically relate to work in the PWS categories similar in nature. Contracts listed may include those entered into by the Federal Government, agencies of state and local governments and commercial customers. Offerors that are newly formed entities without prior contracts should list contracts and subcontracts as required above for all key personnel. Include the following information for each contract and subcontract:

- 1. Name of contracting activity
- 2. Beginning and ending dates
- 3. Contract number
- 4. Contract type
- 5. Total contract value
- 6. Contract work
- 7. Contracting Officer and telephone
- 8. Program manager and telephone
- 9. Administrative Contracting Officer, if different from #6 and telephone number
- 10. List of major subcontractors

PLEASE NOTE: Offerors are to use Attachment J.7 - Past Performance Reference Information when providing this information.

- B. The offeror may provide information on problems encountered on the contract and subcontracts identified in A above and corrective actions taken to resolve those problems. Offerors should not provide general information of their performance on the identified contracts. General performance information will be obtained from the references.
- C. The offeror may describe any quality of awards or certifications that indicate the offeror possess a high quality process for developing and producing the product or service required.

Identify what segment of the company (one division or the entire company) that received the award or certification. Describe when the award or certification was bestowed. If the award or certification is over three years old, present evidence that the qualifications still apply.

D. Each offeror will be evaluated on his/her performance under existing and prior contracts for similar products or services related to the PWS categories stated in the RFP. Performance information will be used for both responsibility determinations and as an evaluation factor against which offerors' relative rankings will be compared to assure best value to the Government. The Government will focus on information that demonstrates quality of performance relative to the size and complexity of the procurement under consideration. The contractor's reference information form identified in Attachment J.8 will be used to collect this information. References other than those identified by the offeror may be contacted by the Government with the information received used in the evaluation of the offeror's past performance. The Government also reserves the right to decide not to contact all of the references provided by the offeror. Names of individuals providing reference information about an offeror's past performance shall not be disclosed. Offerors are advised to provide the correct point of contact and telephone numbers of past performance references.

# L.6 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

# (A) - General Instructions:

Offerors and tenders must submit an offer (proposal) and other written information in strict accordance with these instructions. When evaluating an offeror, the Government will consider how well the offeror complied with the letter and spirit of these instructions. The Government will consider any failure on the part of an offeror to comply with both the letter and spirit of these instructions to be an indication of the type of conduct it can expect during contract performance. Therefore, the Government encourages offerors to contact the Contracting Officer by telephone, facsimile transmission, e-mail, or mail in order to request an explanation of any part of these instructions.

Your proposal must be submitted in four (4) separate and distinct parts as outlined below, consisting of the number of stated copies and accompanied by the required supportive materials to insure that the proposal will be considered responsible to the Request for Proposals. The Technical Proposal shall not make reference to cost or price data so that an independent technical evaluation may be made on the basis of technical merit alone. Failure to comply with this requirement will result in a determination of non-responsiveness.

PLEASE NOTE: Pursuant to OMB Circular A-76 (revised May 29, 2003), Attachment B, the agency tender is not required to include (a) a labor strike plan; (b) a small business strategy; (c) a subcontracting plan goal; (d) participation of small disadvantaged businesses; (e) licensing or other certifications; and (f) past performance information.

Proposals shall be legible, neatly typewritten (on one side only), in a type size not smaller 12-point proportional using <u>Arial font</u>, on paper not larger than eight and one half by eleven inches and not exceed the 125 page limit established herein. Pages in excess of the individual limitations will not be read, and the proposal will be evaluated as if the excess pages did not exist. Some foldout charts or diagrams may be used within the aforementioned restrictions/page limitations. Each 8.5" x 11" page foldout will be counted as one page (i.e., one foldout with two pages will be counted as two 8.5" x 11" pages). Past performance data shall be submitted directly to the contract specialist, as indicated in Part 3 below, using Attachment J.7, Past Performance Reference Information.

#### DOL061RP20093

#### Section L

Offerors' technical proposal shall address the offeror's ability to meet every task outlined in the PWS in compliance with Federal [program support services] and explain exactly how they will do this. Offerors shall reference the appropriate paragraph, task order or sub-task in giving their responses and such responses shall be in the same order as in the RFP.

Offerors shall identify and explain any exceptions or deviations taken or conditional assumptions made with respect to the statement of work. Any exceptions, deviations, or conditional assumptions taken shall contain sufficient amplification and justification to permit evaluation. The benefit to the Government shall be explained for each exception taken. All exceptions, deviations, or conditional assumptions must be submitted to the Contracting Officer prior to the date for receipt of the Request for Clarifications (RFC).

The Government warns offerors that taking exception to any term or condition of the RFP (including submitting any alternative proposal that requires a relaxation of a requirement) will make their offer unacceptable, and the offeror ineligible for award, unless the RFP expressly authorizes such an exception with regard to that specific term or condition. The Government will consider any exception to a term or condition of the RFP that is not expressly authorized by the RFP to be a deficiency, as defined in FAR Part 15.

Proposals specifying less than one hundred twenty (120) days Government Acceptance may be considered not acceptable. Any exceptions taken by a proposer to any provisions of this Request for Proposals or any condition placed upon a proposal may result in a finding of not acceptable. Only one proposal may be submitted by each respondent.

#### Part 1

Original and two (2) signed copies of completed Standard Form 33, Solicitation, Offer and Award, Original and two (2) signed copies of Section K, the Representations, Certifications and other Statements of Offerors, and all attachments thereto except those items required in Part 2, 3 and 4 will be submitted as outlined in their respective parts.

Only legible copies are acceptable. (All copies shall be ink-signed.)

# Part 2

(1) Offerors shall submit an original and five copies of their technical proposal, which includes Section I - Understanding of the PWS; Section II - Technical Approach; and Section III - Management Approach/Personnel/Key Personnel. The page limit should not exceed 125 pages for Sections I, II, and III (not including position descriptions for the labor categories necessary to perform this requirement and the plan for providing the personnel required for this contract (See Section M.3 (B, C, D, and E)). Responses under these evaluation criteria that do not meet the requirements will be determined technically unacceptable and not considered for award.)

#### Part 3

(1) Offerors shall submit an original and three copies of relevant past performance information (See Section L.5 and M.3 (F)). Failure to submit required past performance references with the formal proposal will result in an automatic disqualification from further consideration.

#### Part 4

A detailed Schedule of Prices for the prime contract and all subcontractors as further outlined in the below instructions and consisting of:

- (a) Three (3) copies of Part I The Schedule, Section B.2 Services and Price/Costs;
- (b) One (1) copy of Attachment J.3 Statement of Financial Capability, ETA 8554 (Mar. 1981);

(c) One (1) each Accounting System Certification which is a statement certifying that the offeror has an established accounting system with internal controls adequate to safeguard their assets, insure that funds are accounted for by cost categories, check the accuracy and reliability of the accounting data, promote operating efficiency and permit compliance with Government requirements and accounting procedures with respect to Firm-Fixed-Price type contracts.

The statement shall be executed by a certified public accountant (CPA), licensed public accountant, a bonafide accounting or audit organization such as Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) or an entity of equivalent status acceptable to the Government. Failure to include the above stated supportive materials with your proposal will be a basis for determination of not being acceptable.

NOTE: Parts 1, 2, 3, and 4 should be sealed in separate envelopes and included in one master package. The RFP number and related Part numbers outlined above, if applicable, must be shown in the upper left hand corner of each of the envelopes as well as the master package.

An offeror may eliminate a deficiency in its offer only through discussions, as defined and prescribed in FAR Part 15. However, the Government intends to award a contract without discussions, as authorized by FAR Part 15. Therefore, any offeror planning to take exception to a term or condition of the RFP should consult with the Contracting Officer prior to submitting an offer, unless the RFP expressly authorizes such an exception.

Not withstanding its plan to award without discussions, the Government reserves the right to conduct technical and cost discussions with offers in a competitive range, if necessary, and to permit such offerors to revise their proposals. The government also reserves the right to change any terms and conditions of their RFP by amendment at any time prior to contract award and to allow offerors to revise their offers accordingly, as authorized by FAR Part 15.

The offeror shall complete and submit all certifications included in or attached to this Request for Proposal.

The Schedule of Prices (Section B.3) and Financial Capability Forms (Attachment J.3) support information shall be augmented as follows:

Offerors are required to submit cost proposals fully supported by cost and pricing data adequate to establish the reasonableness of the proposed costs and containing the following information:

- 1. Most current published annual balance sheet and profit or loss statement.
- 2. The offeror shall furnish a total cost breakdown.
- (a) Include the backup data to support the type of labor and estimated numbers of hours within each category.
- (b) Include a breakdown of the amount estimated for travel including destination, duration, purpose and cost (per diem and transportation).
- (c) Include backup data to support the estimated amount of material and subcontracting (if applicable) including description of materials to be procured, basis for proposed subcontract, type of subcontract and amounts proposed.
- 3. List the names and addresses of any subcontractor\* the offeror intends to use in the performance of a resulting contract. Include the following information about the subcontract(s).

#### Section L

- (a) How subcontractor was selected?
- (b) Has the subcontractor submitted a cost proposal?
- (c) Will he be able to start performance at the start of the contract period?
- (d) What is the total cost of (each) subcontract?
- (e) What services (skills) will the subcontract provide?
- (f) What experience do they have in this technical area?
- \*Also provide the above information for consultants you intend to use in the performance of a resulting contract.

Consultants: Persons who are members of a particular profession or posses a special skill and who are not officers or employees of the contractor.

#### L.7 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

The contractor shall be required to provide the necessary personnel to accomplish each task listed above. The key personnel positions and their required time commitments are as follows:

PROJECT MANAGER (1 FTE) - 100% DEPUTY PROJECT MANAGER REPRESENTATIVE(S) (FTE TBD BY OFFEROR) - 25% each

# L.8 52.252-1 SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998)

This solicitation incorporates one or more solicitation provisions by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text. Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make their full text available. The offeror is cautioned that the listed provisions may include blocks that must be completed by the offeror and submitted with its quotation or offer. In lieu of submitting the full text of those provisions, the offeror may identify the provision by paragraph identifier and provide the appropriate information with its quotation or offer. Also, the full text of a solicitation provision may be accessed electronically at this/these address(es):

http://www.arnet.gov/far

#### **SECTION M - EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD**

#### M.1 NOTICE LISTING SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following solicitation provisions pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the FAR provision at FAR "52.252-1 SOLICITATION PROVISIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section L of this solicitation. See FAR 52.252-1 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a provision.

NUMBER TITLE DATE 52.217-5 EVALUATION OF OPTIONS JUL 1990

# M.2 BASIS FOR AWARD (LOWEST PRICE, TECHNICALLY ACCEPTABLE)

The Government shall conduct a lowest price technically acceptable source selection in accordance with FAR 15.101-2 and OMB Circular A-76. The evaluation criteria set forth within this Section shall be used to make the determination of technical acceptability. The successful Offeror's proposal/tender must receive a rating of "technically acceptable" for all factors and sub-factors in order to be considered for lowest price competition.

The Government intends to evaluate proposals based on a lowest priced, technically acceptable basis. Pursuant to FAR 52.207-1, unless the result of the cost comparison favors the Government, award will be made on the basis of the lowest evaluated price of proposals meeting or exceeding the acceptability standards for non-cost evaluation factors.

A price realism analysis on the pricing information will be performed for all technically acceptable offerors to evaluate the reasonableness of offered prices. Contract award will be based on the combined evaluations of the Understanding of the Requirements, Technical Approach, Management Approach, Professional Personnel, Past Performance and Price. The contract resulting from this solicitation will be awarded to the responsible offeror whose offer, conforming to the solicitation, is determined to provide the lowest price, technically acceptable to the Government. It should be noted that cost is not a numerically weighted factor.

Prospective contractors are advised that the selection of a contractor for contract award is to be made, after a careful evaluation of the offers (proposals) received, by a panel of evaluators chosen by DOL/ETA. Each panelist will evaluate the proposals for technical acceptability using a range of scores assigned to each factor. With the exception of Price, all evaluation factors will be given equal weight in the technical evaluation process on a scale of 0-25 points per factor. Those offerors determined technically "Acceptable" or above will be included in a competitive range of eligible offerors. That offeror in the competitive range of eligible offerors with the lowest pricing to have been determined to have an overall evaluation score of "80 or above" will be offered a contract award. Please be advised that failure to fully meet any criterion may disqualify a proposal. In addition, failure to submit required documents may deem the offeror to be unacceptable. Any proposals

#### **Section M**

that are so incomplete on the face of the documents as to preclude any meaningful evaluation or that simply show a clear lack of understanding shall be considered unacceptable.

With the exception of price, the evaluation factors listed below are all of equal importance: Understanding of the Requirements, Technical Approach, Management Approach, Professional Personnel, and Past Performance. Price is considered the most important evaluation factor.

#### M.3 EVALUATION CRITERIA

# A. PRICE

Provide a completed price proposal by filling in the Price Schedule in Section B.2 of the solicitation for the base year and each option period. The price proposals will be evaluated based on the following:

- (1) Price Reasonableness. The price proposal will be evaluated to determine reasonableness of price. A comparison of the proposed prices and/or market value will be used to evaluate price. Should price competition not exist, a cost analysis may be necessary to establish price reasonableness.
- (2) Price Realism. Price Realism will be performed as part of the proposal evaluation process. The purpose of this evaluation shall be to (a) verify the offeror's understanding of the requirement; (b) to assess the degree to which the cost/price proposal reflects the approaches and/or risk assessments made in the technical proposal as well as the risk that the offeror will provide the services for the offered price/cost; and (c) assess the degree to which the price reflected in the price proposal accurately represents the work effort included in the technical offer (proposal). Offerors are placed on notice that any proposals that are unrealistic in terms of technical commitment or unrealistically low in price will be deemed reflective of an inherent lack of technical competence or indicative of failure to comprehend the complexity and risk of contract requirements, and grounds for rejection of the proposal.
- (3) Option. The Government will evaluate offers for award purposes by adding the total price of all options to the total price for the basic requirement. The Government may determine that an offer is unacceptable if the option prices are significantly unbalanced. Evaluation of options shall not obligate the Government to exercise the option(s).

#### B. UNDERSTANDING OF THE REQUIREMENTS (25 points)

The contractor shall demonstrate a thorough working knowledge of the requirements and tasks described in the Performance Work Statement (PWS), and describe how they will meet challenges of providing program support services in a Federal environment. The offeror shall demonstrate a sound and workable approach that ensures a high probability of successful performance.

# C. TECHNICAL APPROACH (25 points)

The offeror shall demonstrate its understanding of the requirements through the degree of thoroughness, soundness, and comprehension expressed by the proposed technical approach. The technical approach proposed by the contractor for performing the tasks and meeting milestones of the implementation strategy must be proposed to support: 1) Administrative and Customer Support; 2) Logistics Support, 3) Program Support, 4) Information Technology and Management Support, 5) Policy and Planning Support, 6) Program

#### **Section M**

Management and Outreach Support, 7) Procurement and Accounting Support, 8) the Mission of the Employment Standards Administration (ESA), 9) the Mission of the Employment & Training Administration (ETA), 10) the Mission of the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA), and 11) the Mission of the Women's Bureau (WB). The technical approach shall be explicitly detailed and presented in the proposal so as to show how the vendor will provide the DOL with a complete understanding of the methods and actions to be applied by the contractor's personnel working on an integrated basis with DOL team personnel. Failure to present each of these areas will result in lowered scoring.

# D. MANAGEMENT APPROACH (25 points)

The management approach proposed by the contractor is critical to the success of this effort within the timeframe involved. Therefore, the management approach proposed by the contractor to accomplish each phase of the PWS must be explicitly detailed and presented in the proposal so as to provide the DOL with a complete description of how the effort will be managed for each task order issued covering each task area in the PWS. The management approach shall clearly describe a complete understanding by task of the required actions, anticipated workload, labor needs by type, projected travel, as well as other requirements, and that describes the management controls that will be established and used to monitor individual and/or overall tasks.

# E. PROFESSIONAL PERSONNEL (25 points)

The Offeror shall identify the labor categories and position descriptions necessary to perform this requirement. For each category identified/proposed, provide a description of the qualifications required for successful performance (i.e., education, types and length of experience, level of expertise, certifications, special skills or knowledge) and discuss which sections of the PWS it supports and the number of full-time-equivalent positions to be staffed. Please see Attachment J.12 Professional Personnel Technical Skill Sets for a draft list of requirements for key personnel.

The offeror shall discuss their plan for providing the personnel required for this contract. The plan should demonstrate the offeror's ability to provide qualified personnel by demonstrating the sufficiency of its resources, its approach to reassignment of staff and/or plans for recruitment for startup, its ability to retain current staff and its plan for subcontracting or teaming, if applicable.

The offeror's plan should include a discussion of the following areas; however, since the ATO and other public offerors are bound by federal hiring regulations, their plans may address all items, but need only address items 1 through 3. Any identified subcontractors or team members shall also provide a discussion of the following:

- 1. The number of personnel currently employed full-time by the offeror that satisfy the qualifications established above;
- 2. The number of personnel that satisfy the qualifications planned to be provided from the current employees of each proposed subcontractor or from consultants;
- 3. The number of personnel that satisfy the qualifications specified in the RFP planned to be provided from new hires;
- 4. Demonstrated ability to supply adequate staffing on past requirements and historical retention rates; and

5. The offeror's benefits package and how it will assist in retaining or recruiting necessary staff.

# PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT OFFERORS INCLUDING THE MOST EFFICIENT ORGANIZATION (MEO) WILL BE EVALUATED BASED ON THE FOLLOWING:

- The proposed Personnel/Staffing labor categories and associated position descriptions of qualifications for successful performance will be evaluated as to their appropriateness and relevance in relation to the work to be performed under the PWS.
- 2. The labor category mix and proposed hours will be evaluated against the technical approach to assess the likelihood of successful performance.
- 3. The offeror's proposed staffing plan and inventory of current/existing personnel and personnel proposed by subcontracting/teaming will be evaluated to determine the adequacy of its ability to perform during peak workloads.
- 4. Staffing and/or organization charts listing names or positions; staff time/time loading charts showing the amount of time each staff person or position will devote to each task and sub-task, and an indication of how staff or position will be allocated to perform all necessary field work during the project.

# F. CONTRACTOR'S PAST PERFORMANCE (25 points)

Each offeror will be evaluated on his/her performance under existing and prior contracts (within the last 3 years) for similar products or services related to the PWS categories stated in the RFP. Past performance shall include evaluating offerors with no relevant performance history, and shall provide offerors an opportunity to identify past or current contracts (Federal, State and local government, and private) for efforts similar to the Government requirement. Offerors will be provided the opportunity to address unfavorable reports of past performance, if the offeror has not had a previous opportunity to review the rating. Offerors shall provide information on problems encountered on the identified contracts and the offerors' corrective actions. The Government shall consider this information, as well as information obtained from any other sources, when evaluating the offeror's past performance. The Contracting Officer shall determine the relevance of similar past performance information. Offerors shall submit past performance information regarding predecessor companies, key and subcontractors that will perform major or critical aspects of the requirement. Offerors without relevant past performance history or for whom information on past performance is not available may not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance. In this instance the offeror would receive a neutral score.

### M.4 DETERMINING AWARD

The Contracting Officer will consider the offeror with the lowest price, technically acceptable score to represent the best value to the Government. Please be advised that in the event that the offerors within the competitive range are essentially technically equal in terms of technical, past performance other non-cost factors, and price, the Government reserves the right to award multiple contracts under this solicitation.

# **Section M**

Pursuant to FAR Subpart 52.215-1 Instructions to Offerors - Competitive Acquisition, the Contracting Officer reserves the right to award without discussions to the source(s) whose offer is the most advantageous to the Government, price and other factors considered.

**Scoring Adjective**. The following adjectives will be used as general guidance in assessing each technical sub-criterion and the technical proposal as a whole and will be assigned the points as indicated.

Outstanding	О	Fully meets all solicitation requirements and very significantly exceeds most or all solicitation requirements. Response exceeds a "Better" rating. The offeror has clearly demonstrated an understanding of all aspects of the requirements to the extent that timely and highest quality performance is anticipated.	23-25/ 115- 125 POINTS
Better	В	Fully meets all solicitation requirements and significantly exceed many of the solicitation requirements. Response exceeds an "Acceptable" rating. The areas in which the offeror exceeds the requirements are anticipated to result in a high level of efficiency or productivity or quality.	20-22/ 100- 110 POINTS
Acceptable	Α	Meets all solicitation requirements. Complete, comprehensive, and exemplifies an understanding of the scope and depth of the task requirements as well as the Offeror's understanding of the Government's requirements.	16-19/ 80-95 POINTS
Marginal	M	Means Less than "Acceptable." There are some deficiencies in the technical proposal. However, given the opportunity for discussions, the technical proposal has a reasonable chance of becoming at least "Acceptable." (Areas of a technical proposal which remain "Marginal" after "Best and Final" offers shall not be subject to further discussion or revision.) If award is made on initial offers, there will not be an opportunity for discussions, nor a chance to become at least "Acceptable."	11-15/ 55-75 POINTS
Unacceptable	U	Means Less than "Acceptable." There are some deficiencies in the technical proposal. However, given the opportunity for discussions, the technical proposal has a reasonable chance of becoming at least "Acceptable." (Areas of a technical proposal which remain "Marginal" after "Best and Final" offers shall not be subject to further discussion or revision.) If award is made on initial offers, there will not be an opportunity for discussions, nor a chance to become at least "Acceptable."	0-10/ 0-50 POINTS